ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 3, 2004
4:30 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative David CGuttenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI NG&( S)

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Duane S. Udl and - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

St ate Assessnent Revi ew Board

Allen S. Black - Pal ner
Patrick S. Carl son - Kodi ak

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Marine Pilots

Robert J. Arts - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska Workers' Conpensati on Board

Valarie L. Allnmon - Anchorage

Chris N Johansen - Fairbanks

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1-

May 3, 2004



Davi d Kester - Anchorage

James (Jay) N. Rhodes - Ketchi kan
Patricia A Vollendorf - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

State Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers, and Land
Surveyors

Craig Fredeen - Eagle River
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Board of Barbers and Hai rdressers

Debra Long - Fairbanks

Joyl ene Marrs - Anchorage

Angel a J. Rosas - Houston

Larry Allen Ungerecht - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 357(FIN)

"An Act relating to the regulation of insurance, insurance
i censes, qualifications of insurance producers, surplus Ilines,
fraud investigations, electronic transactions, and conpliance
with federal law and national standards; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HCS CSSB 357(L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 389

"An Act relating to the conversion of certain corporations to
limted liability conpanies; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED SB 389 OQUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 365(FIN)

"An  Act relating to the regulation of speech- | anguage
pat hol ogi st assistants; and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- May 3, 2004



- MOVED CSSB 365(FIN) OUT OF COMM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: SB 357

SHORT TI TLE: | NSURANCE
SPONSOR(S): LABOR & COMVERCE

03/ 01/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 01/ 04 (S) L&C, FIN

03/ 09/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 09/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 09/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 23/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 23/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 357(L&C) Qut of Committee
03/ 23/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 24/ 04 (S) L& RPT CS 2DP 3NR SAME TI TLE
03/ 24/ 04 (S NR: BUNDE, FRENCH, STEVENS G

03/ 24/ 04 (S) DP: SEEKINS, DAVIS

03/ 31/ 04 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 31/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 04 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 01/ 04 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 01/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 01/ 04 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 02/ 04 (S FIN RPT CS 3DP 3NR SAME TI TLE
04/ 02/ 04 (S) DP: W LKEN, GREEN, STEVENS B;

04/ 02/ 04 (S) NR: DYSON, OLSON, BUNDE

04/ 02/ 04 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 02/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 357(FIN) Qut of Conmittee
04/ 02/ 04 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 16/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 16/ 04 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 357(FIN)

04/ 19/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 19/ 04 (H) L&C

04/ 21/ 04 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER L&C

04/ 30/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3: 15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 30/ 04 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

05/ 01/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

05/ 01/ 04 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

05/ 03/ 04 (H) FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

05/ 03/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: SB 389

SHORT TITLE. CORP. CONVERSI ON TO LI M TED LI ABI LI TY CO
SPONSOR(S): LABOR & COMVERCE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- May 3, 2004



04/ 15/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 15/ 04 (S) L&C

04/ 20/ 04 (S) L&C AT 2:00 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 20/ 04 (S) Moved SB 389 Qut of Conmittee
04/ 20/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 21/ 04 (S) L&C RPT 3DP 2NR

04/ 21/ 04 (S) NR. BUNDE, FRENCH;

04/ 21/ 04 (S) DP: DAVI S, SEEKINS, STEVENS G
04/ 27/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 27/ 04 (S) VERSI ON:  SB 389

05/ 01/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 01/ 04 (H L&C, FIN

05/ 03/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: SB 365
SHORT TI TLE: SPEECH- LANGUAGE PATHOLOQ ST ASSI STANTS
SPONSCR(S) : LABOR & COWMMERCE

03/ 17/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 17/ 04 (S) L&C, FIN

04/ 01/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 01/ 04 (S) Moved SB 365 Qut of Committee

04/ 01/ 04 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 02/ 04 (S) L&C RPT 3DP 1NR

04/ 02/ 04 (S) DP: BUNDE, SEEKINS, DAVIS; NR. FRENCH
04/ 16/ 04 (S) FIN RPT CS 3DP 1NR SAME TI TLE
04/ 16/ 04 (S) DP: BUNDE, HOFFMAN, STEVENS B;

04/ 16/ 04 (S) NR. OLSON

04/ 16/ 04 (S) FIN AT 9:00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

04/ 16/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 365(FIN) Qut of Committee
04/ 16/ 04 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 26/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 26/ 04 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 365( FI N)

05/ 01/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

05/ 01/ 04 (H) L&C, FIN

05/ 03/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

M CHAEL LESSMEI ER, Lobbyi st

for State Farm I nsurance

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered support for SB 357, but stated his
di sappointnent that the bill does not address the problem of
availability of insurance.

SENATOR CON BUNDE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- May 3, 2004



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As chair of the Senate Labor and Comrerce
Comm ttee, sponsor of SB 357, introduced the bill

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the major points of SB 357 and
answer ed questi ons.

JANE ALBERTS, Staff

to Senator Con Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 389 and SB 365 as conmittee
aide to the Senate Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee,
sponsor of the bills, and answered questions.

MARK HI CKEY, Lobbyi st

Al eut Enterprise Corporation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned SB 389 and answered questi ons.

CHUCK HARLAMERT

Juneau Section Chi ef

Tax Division of Adm nistrative Services

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 389.

LAURA YOUNG CAMPBELL, Speech-Language Pat hol ogi st

Mat anuska- Susi tna School District;

Menber,

Al aska Speech-Language Heari ng Associ ation

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 365
and answer ed questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-50, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 4:30 p.m Represent ati ves

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- May 3, 2004



Ander son, Dahl strom Lynn, and Rokeberg were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Gatto and Crawford arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

Nunmber 0056

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be the confirmation hearings for 14 of the governor's
appoi ntnents to various boards as listed above in the commttee
calendar. He noted that each conmmttee nenber was provided with
the nanmes and resunes for each of the 14 appointnents and that
the conmittee made no requests of the appointees to answer
guestions before the conmttee. He said he took the lack of
requests as there being no objections to the group.

CHAI R ANDERSON requested that each nenber sign the confirmation
commttee report and noted that each nenber's signature does not
reflect the nenber's vote during the joint floor session.

[ The confirmation of the 14 appointnents was advanced from the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Comrittee. ]

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the governor renoved the name of Janes
Spaul ding fromthe Al aska Labor Rel ati ons Agency appoi nt nent.

SB 357- 1 NSURANCE

Nunber 0170

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 357(FIN), "An Act relating to the
regul ation of insurance, insurance |icenses, qualifications of
i nsurance  producers, surplus lines, fraud investigations,
el ectronic transactions, and conpliance wth federal |aw and
nati onal standards; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0175

M CHAEL LESSMElI ER, Lobbyist for State Farm Insurance, offered
support for SB 357, but stated his disappointnent that the bil

does not address the problem of availability of insurance.
Looking at the cover of the director's 65th annual report, he
spoke about the challenges of the lack of availability of
i nsurance products in various lines of coverage ranging from
wor kers' conpensation to contractors' general liability to hone
owners' coverage. He reported that Alaska is alnost last in the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- May 3, 2004



area of the nunber of insurer groups or nonaffiliated conpanies
with at least .1 percent of the 2002 direct witten prem um
mar ket  share. "For private passenger auto we've got 19
conpanies in this state, for honmeowners we've got 15," he
related. He said that this problem would manifest itself in the
| egi slature on a pieceneal basis over and over again until
sonething is done on a broader scale.

MR. LESSMVEIER referred to an April 19 Auto Insurance Report that
focused on Al aska, and he quoted from page 5, "You would think

t hat a state wth no size, little recent profit and
personalized, and virtually no conpetitors, would be anxious to
keep insurers happy. You would also be wong. Al aska has a
very strict prior-approval regine which one nmarket player
described as a quagmre.” If you |ooked at the market share of
who has what insurance in Alaska, it would probably scare you
even nore, he said. |If you |ooked at hone owners' insurance you
would see that State Farm has 32.5 percent of the market and
Al'l state has 30 percent and then it drops to 5 percent. |If you

| ook at nedical mal practice you can see that only two conpanies
are witing that kind of insurance in this state, he said. He
maintained that it is not healthy for the insurance market to
have those ki nds of nunbers.

Number 0458

MR. LESSMEI ER proposed that the state get out of the business of
regul ating insurance |like nmany other states have. He quoted one
of the leading experts in this area, Dr. Phillip O Connor(ph)
who said, "Virtually every bit of reputable, academc, and
governnental research conducted over the past 30 years either
concludes that reliance on conpetitive pricing in insurance
produces an appreciable, tangible, consuner benefits. The
essence of the story is that we have a |level of consensus rare
in the social sciences and studi es of governnment policy."

MR. LESSMEI ER noted that he has drafted a proposed anendnent,
| abeled 1.4, that was worked on wth the [Departnment of
Community & Econonic Devel opnent], D vision of Insurance, but
was not conpletely finished. He said he hopes to work nore on
it over the sumrer and make progress in three areas. He
proposed to go from prior approval to "use and file" where
insurers are allowed to conpete, and which has been successfully

done in several states, leading to nore stable mrkets and
better prices. He said that one of the keys is nuch greater
availability. The second proposal is to go to a "use and file"
system for fornms, as well. That would open up the narket, he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- May 3, 2004



opi ned. Consuners need protection in market conduct, in clains
and in solvency, but not in price, he explained. The third fix
is a self-critical analysis privilege, which was introduced by
t hen- Senat or Tayl or several years ago, he said. He concluded by
saying that he hopes to find a solution to this problem by next
year.

CHAI R ANDERSON t hanked M. Lessneier for his testinmony and for
deferring his anmendnent until next session.

Number 0731

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that no one had brought this
[issue] to his attention prior to the session and he suggested
that it is really inportant for M. Lessneier and other nenbers
of the [insurance] industry to work during the interim to
educate |egislators about proposed renedial |egislation such as

this. He also brought wup a concern about the Ilack of
avai lability of homeowners' insurance and how it related to the
recent nold issue. He asked M. Lessneier to speak to that
pr obl em

MR. LESSMEIER said that there was an Allstate filing for nold
exclusion which was not approved, and which resulted in a
noratorium on honmeowners' policies. He enphasized that there
are going to be even nore problens if the market situation is
not inproved in ternms of the dom nance of two conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rel ated that the lack of availability of
honeowners' policies is a national problem which has had an
i npact on the Al askan market and needs to be addressed.

Number 0980

SENATOR CON BUNDE, Alaska State Legislature, as chair of the
Senate Labor and Commerce Commttee, sponsor of SB 357,
introduced the bill. He said the bill is by request of the
adm nistration and has sonme interesting, esoteric questions
about insurance in it.

Number 0989

LINDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Community & Econom c Devel opnent, explained the nmgjor points of
SB 357. She began by thanking M. Lessneier for waiting to nake
hi s anmendnent . She said that changes do need to be nmade in the
mar ket pl ace and in the regulatory system and that she is very

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- May 3, 2004



much in favor of |ooking at sonmething else besides the current
prior approval system Alaska is one of the very few states
|l eft that does prior approval for rates, she added. She stated
her commtnent to working over the interim toward a solution
agreeable to all parties involved. She agreed that there is a
need for nore markets.

M5. HALL noted that the Allstate nold issue has been finalized
and that it does point out sone of the types of issues "we get
into." She said she is concerned about the honeowners' nmarket
because of the nold problens, but also because of water clains
i ssues and other unattractive attributes associated with Al aska.
She stated her commtnent toward working with industry toward a
maj or change in the system

Number 1119

M5. HALL reported that Version | of the bill is the [Senate
Fi nance conmttee substitute (CS)] and it has six major areas of
proposed changes, which would ensure that Al aska statutes are
consistent with federal law and with sone of the nodel Acts and
standards of the National Association of I|nsurance Comm ssioners
(NAI Q). "Sonme are required for our accreditation process,
others have cone about as a result of industry task force
nmeetings,"” she said. One of the nmajor changes is electronic
communi cation and there are three sections in the bill that
provi de for vari ous comuni cat i ons to be per f or med
el ectronically, she reported. She said conmunication with the
public, for both insurers and |licensees, is being inproved.

M5. HALL explained that the second area of the bill deals with
late tax paynents. There are four sections that revise
penalties for late paynents and that nmake the tax statutes nore
consistent with the Departnent of Revenue. Currently, there is

a $100-a-day late penalty for late taxes, or 25 percent. "I f
you're a day late, you pay 25 percent of your tax prem um  That
seened excessive," she rel ated. It also adds a $10, 000 penalty

for willful late taxes that did not exist before, she said.

M5. HALL reported that the major changes in the reinsurance
section of the bill is the nost technical piece of the bill
She expl ai ned:

Rei nsurance is the insurance insurance conpanies buy
to take part of the risk away from their capital and
sur pl us. W have a couple sections here that require
i nsurance - and one of the changes that was done in

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- May 3, 2004



the Senate Labor and Comrerce [Conmttee] was to make
rei nsurance contracts available to the D vision of

| nsur ance. W had asked originally to have them
approved by us - that was not very acceptable and we
understood that - so we are asking, however, that we
be able to have a signed copy of the reinsurance
contracts.

Nunber 1236

M5. HALL reported that the fourth major change [in the bill] is
in the licensing sections and is done to nake Al aska consi stent
with the NAIC Producer Licensing Mddel Act. "W have added crop
[insurance] licenses, we have elimnated trainee |icenses, we've
tried to renove sone barriers for people to becone |icensed, and
we're requiring that surplus lines brokers be |icensed, either
as producers or as managi ng general agents," she said.

M5. HALL explained that the fifth area of change deals wth
surplus |ines. "Last summer we convened a task force of
industry representatives and worked through our surplus |ines
statutes and regulations to determne what really works in our
mar ket pl ace to make it nore efficient, to make it reflect actual
practices,” she said. One of the changes is an energency
provision that would allow for the placenment of health insurance
in a surplus lines narket in cases where it is found to be in

the best interest of the public, she explained. It was a
suggestion from Washington, which suffered a health insurance
crisis a few years ago. She termed it a "cautionary mneasure"

and said that there are standards that have to be net before it
coul d occur.

M5. HALL continued to say that there are changes to docunent
requirenents in Section 33, and responsibilities for surplus
| i nes placenents have been added for producing brokers.

Nunmber 1318

M5. HALL pointed out that the sixth area of change is fraudul ent
activity. "Section 41 of the bill provides that a person
involved in the prevention and detection of fraudul ent insurance
act would not be subject to civil liability when filing a report
or when furnishing information to others involved in the
prevention and detection of fraudulent insurance act,"” she
expl ai ned. It allows the fraud departnent of insurer A to talk
to the fraud departnment for insurer B, she said. There are

frequently multiple insurance conpanies involved in fraud in

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- May 3, 2004



i nsur ance. "W would like them to be able to talk to each
other. Currently they can only talk to us,” she said. This was
t he nunber one request of the chief investigator, she added.

M5. HALL continued to discuss the changes in the bill. In the
Senate Finance CS, in Section 2, [paragraph 2] an "and" was
changed to an "or" with the intent being that any one of the
criteria in this section could make a contract invalid in
Al aska.

Number 1412

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN di scl osed that one of his daughters is the
vice president of the Reinsurance Association of America in
Washi ngt on, DC.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked that Representative Lynn still vote on this
bill.

Nunber 1437

CHAIR ANDERSON noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, | abel ed 23-
LS1684\1.5, Bullock, 4/27/04.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM obj ect ed for di scussi on purposes.

M5. HALL expl ained that one of the problens in the narket today
is that the assigned risk pool has |lost noney for at |east the
| ast six years. Five of those years Al aska had the highest |oss
of any state in the country, she reported. That | oss has
contributed to naking Al aska an unattractive market for workers

conpensation insurers. [ Amendnent 1] is a proactive statenent
that would require that the assigned risk pool would be self-
fundi ng during any consecutive three-year period, she said. "W
feel strongly that the assigned risk pool should support itself
and not be subsidized by insurers,” she concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the high-risk pool is currently
subsidized by other carriers who participate in workers
conpensati on.

M5. HALL replied this is correct. They pay the difference
between the cost of claine and the premuns collected, she
added.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the premuns collected are
based on rates established by the [D vision of Insurance].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- May 3, 2004



M5. HALL said it is wultinmately approved by the D vision of
| nsur ance.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the [new] |anguage will give
the [Division of Insurance] the flexibility over tinme to try to
cl ose the gap.

M5. HALL said yes. In the worker's conpensation reform bill
there is a provision that would elimnate the current 25 percent
statutory cap on the differential between voluntary rates and
rates in the assigned-risk pool, she explained. This is a
proactive way of stating the pool needs to be self-funding. The
regul ations currently say it should be self-funding, she added.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired if there will be two different
statutes if the other bills don't pass.

M5. HALL said that there would be a 25 percent cap in that case,
whi ch woul d nake this inpossible to do.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that there would be two statutes at
odds with each ot her.

M5. HALL said she didn't know it they would be at odds with each
other, but it would prevent the full intent of this bill from
bei ng i npl enent ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how nuch nore has to be paid for a
person to be in the assigned-risk pool.

Nunmber 1586

M5. HALL responded that currently there is an abnormal nunber of
smal | policies. The average premum in the assigned-risk pool
in the under $10,000 premium is $864, she said. The average
claim size in Alaska today is in excess of $19,000, so when
there is an $800 policy average and a $19,000 claim it takes
roughly 8,000 policies with a premum of less than $10, 000.
That $3,000 exenption from the 25 percent surcharge is part of
what has created this gap, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the snmaller premuns end up
bei ng nore subsi di zed.

Nunmber 1638

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- May 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM r enoved her objection to Anendnent 1.
[ Amendnment 1 was treated as adopted.]
Nunmber 1646

CHAIR ANDERSON noved to adopt Anendnent 2, | abel ed 23-
LS1684\ 1.7, Bullock, 5/3/04.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM obj ect ed for di scussi on purposes.

M5. HALL expl ained that Amendnent 2 wll alleviate a probl em due
to insolvencies. Currently, the difference between clains
collected and clains paid out is assessed back to insurance
conpani es, she said. That is not assessed to policyholders, so
it becomes a direct insurer obligation. "When an insurance
conpany becones insolvent, their share of that loss s
reall ocated anong those l|left standing, so to speak," she said.
Amendment 2 woul d require insurance conpanies who have to brook
| ost reserves for the assigned risk pool, to collateralize those
with a deposit, so when that insolvent insurer cannot pay their
portion of the assigned-risk 1osses, that noney would be
avai l abl e for the guaranteed fund, she rel ated.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how this would have applied in the
Frenont situation.

M5. HALL said that if [Amendnent 2] had been in place the noney
woul d have been available to be drawn into the guaranteed fund.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how rmuch noney that woul d be.

M5. HALL replied, "W're asking that the full armount of their
| o0ss reserves be collateralized."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if that would be a disincentive
for new entries into the market.

M5. HALL said, "This has been a vision that industry has

supported and put forward, so | don't see it as a detrinent.
And we've had w de support. In the work conp reform bill we
have done an increased deposit already. On the regqgular
voluntary nmarket this is the conparable piece of that for the
assigned-risk pool, and I've not had any insurer object to
this."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- May 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if other states have this type of
provi si on.

M5. HALL said no, but NCC Holdings, Inc. who admnisters
assigned-risk pools is l|looking very carefully at this. "They
currently have a provision where if an insurance conpany Anvest
rating drops below an A-, they start asking for percentages to
be collateralized. That has not been very effective because by
the time their Anvest rating has dropped, they don't have any
noney and it's difficult to collect it." She reported that NCC
is looking at this idea on a national |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if NAIC has a position on this.
M5. HALL said she has not seen anything from NAl C
Number 1780

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked how the deposits are still able to
be used.

M5. HALL replied, "They can't physically use the noney. They
can count for that for part of their capital sur pl us
requi renents. The noney is there to be considered as assets in

their financial statements. ... W're asking them to take part
of their capital and put it in an account set aside, [so] that
if they becone insolvent, in this case, State of Al aska,

Division of Insurance, would have first right to that noney as
opposed to their estate in an insolvency."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said, "As long as they're in business,
t hey never get to use that again."

M5. HALL replied that they don't get to physically have use of
t hat noney. She pointed out that they have to keep a certain
| evel of surplus to be able to "write business” and this would

be included in that surplus count in a financial accounting as
an asset.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said, "So, all we're really doing is
uppi ng the amount of reserves that they have."

M5. HALL said correct.

Nunber 1871

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- May 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for clarification on the assigned-
ri sk pool reserves.

M5. HALL replied, "Every quarter NCCI, as the pool and plan

adm nistrator, sends insurance conpanies a billing - sone of
it's cash, and sonetinmes - always - there is a change in
reserves, it can either be up or down, and if the reserves went
up, they would need to increase their deposit. So it's based on

just the reserves they're required to book through the plan
adm nistrator, and their obligation to the assigned-risk pool."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what that is based on.

M5. HALL replied, "Market share. If you have 50 percent market
share, you' d have 50 percent of the |oss reserve obligations for
t he pool ," she added.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if previously the current anount
of the deposit was held in [the insurer's] own bal ance sheet and
asset base rather than in an in-state bank.

M5. HALL said, "This would be able to be used where we can't
attach - Frenont assets, for exanple ... there's still noney
there - but we can't get that. |It's spread out anong all of the
creditors, currently policyholders and claimnts, but this would
be a special set-aside for the insolvent insurer's obligations
to the assigned-risk pool."

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM r enoved her objection to Anendnent 2.
[ Amendment 2 was treated as adopted.]
Nunmber 1942

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG noved to report CSSB 357(FIN), as
anended, out of committee with individual reconmmendations and
the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, HCS
CSSB 357(L&C) was reported from House Labor and Conmerce
St andi ng Conmittee.

SB 389- CORP. CONVERSION TO LIMTED LI ABILITY CO

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be SENATE BILL NO 389, "An Act relating to the conversion of
certain corporations to I|imted Iliability conpanies; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- May 3, 2004



Nunber 1978

JANE ALBERTS, Staff to Senator Con Bunde, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SB 389 as commttee aide to the Senate
Labor and Commerce Commttee, sponsor of the bill. She
explained that the bill was introduced at the request of several
Al aska Native Corporations (ANCs).

Nunber 2005

MARK HI CKEY, Lobbyist, Aleut Enterprise Corporation, explained
that the bill is a housekeeping neasure and that a nunber of the
ANCs support it. He said it makes one change. Current | aw
allows a nunber of business entities to convert from their
status as a business entity to that of a |limted liability
conpany. Current |aw does not include corporations in that
list, and the bill wwuld allow a corporation that is a
subsidiary to be converted, which ensures no tax loss to the
state, he related. He stated that there is a zero fiscal note
from the Departnment of Revenue. The change could be done
Wi thout this bill, but it would be nuch nore cunbersone, he
sai d. He pointed out that there are letters of support in the

nmenbers' packets.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Title 10 is applicable to all
corporations or just to ANGCs.

MR. H CKEY said, "All corporations.” He noted that it is
especially applicable to regional corporations, but the change
is applicable to any corporation in the state that is a
subsidi ary.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a witness from the
Departnent of Revenue.

Nunber 2145

CHUCK  HARLAMERT, Juneau Section Chief, Tax Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Department of Revenue, i ntroduced
hi nsel f.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a C-type <corporation is
currently able to nmake a conversion to a limted liability
conpany (LLC).

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- May 3, 2004



MR. HARLAMERT replied that a business could certainly reorganize
and beconme an LLC, but state |law does not allow it to change its
status froma corporation to an LLC

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if that is what the bill does.
MR. HARLAMERT replied that from his understanding, it does.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how it happens.

MR. HARLAMERT said he assunes that the conpany hires an attorney
to file [the new status] with the Departnent of Conmerce.

Number 2208

MR, H CKEY referred to page 1, lines 9-13, [of SB 389] and
pointed out that that is existing law, which is the list in
Title 10 that allows for a conversion to a LLC Adding in the
change on the top of page 2 would allow corporations that are a
subsidiary to have the authority to convert to a LLC he
expl ai ned. The Departnent of Law and The Departnent of Econom c
and Community Devel opnent hel ped to draft this change, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if it is [subsection] (j) or
[ subsection] (I1).

MR. HI CKEY said [subsection] (j).

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is only for subsidiaries and is
not a "free pass" for C-corporations to nake a direct
conver si on.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that in the [Tax Division] fiscal note it
says:

Pursuant to federal incone tax |aw, a limted
liability conmpany ("LLC') is an entity that is not
automatically classified as a corporation. The

default classification of a nmultinmenber business
entity organized as an LLC is a partnership and the
default <classification of a single nenber business
entity organized as an LLC is a disregarded entity
where the owner is the taxpayer. The LLC nmay instead,
however, elect to be taxed as a corporation in lieu of
a default classification.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- May 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that public policy is to not
allow for a very quick conversion froma C-corporation to an LLC
for tax reasons.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that is why he read the fiscal note into the
record. He continued to read, "An LLC taxable as a corporation

for federal income tax purposes is subject to the Alaska
Corporation Net Income Tax in the same nmanner as any other
corporation.” He asked how the fear of changing status for tax

reasons m ght be quell ed.

Nunber 2302

MR. H CKEY said the question also canme up on the other side
"The tax consequence at the state level is zero. W pay - in
our case we're consolidated with the parent - we pay at the
parent ... level which has the obligation for corporate incone

tax based on earnings," he said. The desire to becone an LLC is
not a tax issue, but is because it is cheaper to operate and a
full board will not be required. "It's also a governance issue
- the SBA (Small Business Association) rules required a fair
anount of arm's length arrangenent with the subsidiary board so
we could not, in the past, have nenbers from our parent board
sit on the board of subsidiaries,” he explained. "This wll
give us tighter control,"” he said.

TAPE 04-50, SIDE B
Number 2327

MR. HI CKEY continued to say that the bill was designed so that
there is no state tax consequence, which would not have been the
case if the bill had been broadened to just "corporations".

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he assunmes one reason M. Hickey
would like to make this change is if he has joint venture
operations then it would be easier to form under an LLC He
asked if that is correct.

MR. HI CKEY replied, "Well, we want to protect the ability to do
joint venture and that's why it's by one or nore parent corps.

But the tax consequence with that case will, based on your |eve
of ownership, will accrue with each corporation, so we have 80
percent ownership, we'll have 80 percent."”

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG said the point he was getting to is,
"You're actually not going to really be doing that as a tax
avoi dance nmethod for Al aska corporate taxes because ultimtely

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- May 3, 2004



you'd have to return your net profits back to the parent
corporation at which tinme there'd be a tax ...." He asked if
that is correct.

Nunber 2288

MR. HARLAMERT replied that the LLC is a non-entity for tax
pur poses. It's either going to be treated as a partnership or
the income goes to the owners as it's earned and it's taxed as
it's earned.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a class C-corporation could be
an owner of an LLC.

MR. HARLAMERT replied absolutely. They could still elect tax
treatment of that LLC as a partnership where they pay the tax on
the incone as it's earned, or to treat it as a corporation.
Generally, it would be consolidated, and the same result, he
added.

Nunber 2250

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report SB 389, Version 23-LS1923\D,
out of conmmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, SB 389 was
reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee.

SB 365- SPEECH LANGUAGE PATHOLOG ST ASSI STANTS

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be the CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 365(FIN), "An Act relating to the
regul ation of speech- | anguage pat hol ogi st assi stants; and
providing for an effective date."

Number 2229
JANE ALBERTS, St af f to Senat or Con Bunde, Al aska State

Legislature, presented SB 365 as comrittee aide to the Senate
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee, sponsor of the bill.

Thi s bill est abl i shes regi stration of speech- | anguage
pat hol ogi st assistants through the departnent of occupational
| i censi ng, she expl ai ned. Currently, speech pat hol ogy
assistants (SLPAs) in Alaska are not licensed or regulated like
simlar professions of physi cal and occupati onal t her apy
assi stants. The bill outlines qualifications and training

required to be an SLPA, their scope of practice, supervision,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- May 3, 2004



and continuing education requirenents, she reported. She
cont i nued:

The bill wll nmandate that SLPAs be regulated and
supervi sed, which insures that the consunmer is
receiving appropriate |anguage services. This wll
increase the frequency of services to clients while
mai ntai ning service quality. The use of the SLPAs
wll be crucial in rural and renpte regions in Alaska,
and may be sonme of the only ways that folks needing
those services in these areas wll be able to get

their services, and that's through the use of these
assi stants.

There's currently a shortage of qualified SLPAs in
Al aska. | believe there's about 230 currently in the
state. This bill will give credentials and supervised
authority to SLPAs to adm nister specific services to
clients once they are reviewed by the speech-|anguage
pathologist. It nust be nmade clear, however, that the
use of an SLPA is not neant to replace the work of a
speech- | anguage pat hol ogi st but to extend their
servi ces. Currently SLPAs are licensed through the
Depart ment of Econom c Devel opnent.

There were a couple changes made in Senate Finance to
this bill that were technical |anguage changes that
clarified that the SLPAs coul d not conduct feeding and
swal | ow ng screenings. Apparently, in this industry,
that's very technical screening that can only be done
by a licensed speech pathol ogist. There were four
techni cal changes made in Senate Finance to this bill

M5. ALBERTS noted that the fiscal note is fee-based with a
bi enni al registration fee of approximtely $133.

Number 2093

LAURA YOUNG CAMPBELL, Speech-Language Pathol ogi st, Matanuska-
Susitna School District; Menber, Alaska Speech-Language Hearing
Associ ati on, testified that her wor k| oad has i ncreased
significantly due to paperwork and other duties created by
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and No Child
Left Behind, and that has caused her to have less tine to work
with students. An assistant would be able to help take on
duties such as scheduling neetings wth parents, provide
prescribed therapy, and follow a treatnment plan for students

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- May 3, 2004



with disabilities, she explained. An assistant would allow the
students to conplete their Individual Education Plan (lIEP) goals
faster and allow themto return to the classroom and experience
academ c success. An assistant would also be a cost saving to
the school district and to the state when the tinme frame for the
treatnment plan is cut down, she opined. An assistant would al so
enable smaller teaching groups, which, according to the Nationa
Aneri can Speech-Language-Hearing Association, allows for faster
progress by children. The SLPA would be supervised by a speech-
| anguage pat hol ogi st and woul d have a specific scope of practice
to follow, she concl uded.

Number 2023

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO t hanked Ms. Canpbell for the work she does.
He pointed out that his mnor was in speech pathology and he
said he understands the amount of paperwork that is involved in
her j ob.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is an existing board
whi ch woul d supervi se the SLPAs.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL replied that it wuld be through the
[Division] of OQOccupational Licensing, [Departnment of Comrunity
and Econom c Devel opnent].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a board for speech-
| anguage pat hol ogi st s.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL replied no.
Nunmber 1984

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if speech-|anguage pathol ogists
are currently |icensed under occupational |icensing.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL said that some are [licensed] through the
[Division] of GOccupational Licensing and sone are [licensed]
t hrough the Departnent of Educati on.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if this bill wuld bring all 1licensing
under one statute.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL replied that it is only for assistants. Both
the Departnment of Education and the Division of Occupational
Licensing would follow the bill's guidelines when hiring
[ SLPAs], she expl ai ned.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- May 3, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if this bill is needed to set up a
conpetency | evel for SLPAs.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a mninmm |evel of
education required.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL replied that Prince WIIliam Sound Comrunity
Col |l ege has a two-year SLPA program and 100 hours of supervised
clinical practice, which fall wunder the guidelines of the No
Child Left Behind Act.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if a person would have to go to
Val dez to get this degree.

M5. YOUNG CAMPBELL said that it is a distance-delivery program
and it is currently the only programin Al aska.

Nunmber 1863

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinony.

Number 1855

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report CSSB 365(FIN), Version
23-LS0540\S, out of commttee with individual recomendations
and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection,
CSSB 365(FIN) was reported from the House Labor and Commerce
Standi ng Conm ttee.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:30 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- May 3, 2004



